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Questions and Answers 

 
NHDOC RFI 14-02-OFBI 

 
Question 1: On page 3 of the RFI, section 6.3.2 it states that two (2) electronic copies compatible with 

Microsoft Word 2000 and Excel 2000 on a CD ROM.  As an alternative can we supply our entire 

RFP in PDF format?  If not can we at least supplement the required Word and Excel files with 

PDF files where applicable?   

Answer 1: PDF would be acceptable. 

Question 2: Page 6 of the RFI, Section 1 makes mention of depositing funds “into the inmate account”.  Who 

provides the software that is used to manage the inmate’s account?  Also, can you please provide 

the version of the software used and a technical contact for the provider? 

Answer 2: Inmate account management is provided as part of our Offender Management System.  

That system is called CORIS and is provided by Abilis New England from Portland Maine.  

You can contact Pat Dionne from Abilis NE for more details. 

Question 3: Page 6 of the RFI, Section 1 makes mention of depositing funds “into the offender restitution 

account”.  Who provides the software that is used to manage the offender’s restitution account?  

Also, can you please provide the version of the software and a technical contact for the provider?  

Answer 3: Same answer as question #2.   

Question 4: Page 6 of the RFI, Section 1 makes mentions “Commissary / Canteen Orders”.  Who provides the 

software that is used to manage the commissary / canteen ordering process now?  What is the 

current process to order commissary / canteen?  Is commissary / Canteen currently privatized and 

if so which company holds the current contract?  Also, can you please provide the version of the 

software and a technical contact for the provider?  

Answer 4: The software is currently part of our OMS as well.  The process is a mixed one.  Inmates are 

provided with a paper order form that they fill out and return to staff.  Staff enter the 

orders into our OMS which manages inventory, links to inmate accounts, purchase 

restrictions, etc.  Staff along with inmate workers then pick and fill orders from stock.  

Stock is managed in-house by DOC staff.  We have no canteen vendor, staff make purchases 

from a variety of product suppliers.  Supply is stored at the NH Department of Corrections 

(NH DOC) warehouse and canteen locations.       
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Question 5: Page 6 of the RFI, Section 1 makes mention of Music Service provided via the housing kiosk 

units.  Does the NH DOC currently offer this service to the inmates?  If yes, what company 

provides these services now?  If yes, can you please provide purchase history for the past year?   

Answer 5: NHDOC currently contracts with Keefe to provide music service.  From January of 2013 to 

June of 2013 there were 25,665 downloads sold along with 125 MP3 players sold. 

Question 6:  Page 6 of the RFI, Section 1 makes mention of Inmate Email provided via the housing kiosk 

units.  Does the NH DOC currently offer this service to the inmates?  If yes, what company 

provides these services now?  If yes, can you please provide purchase history for the past year?   

Answer 6: NHDOC currently contracts with Keefe for inmate email as part of the music service, 

however the email service has not been put into production so there is no purchase history 

to provide at this time. 

Question 7: Page 7 of the RFI, Section 5.1.1 makes mention of “Delivery of digital music via a kiosk to an 

inmates approved digital music player.”  Is the player to be provided by the responding vendor?  

Does NH DOC wish information on the available players?   

Answer 7: This is the vendor’s option.  The vendor may sell an approved player to inmates or they 

may provide NH DOC with a list of compatible players that NH DOC will sell to inmates.  If 

the vendor proposes a certain player then specs would be useful to the NH DOC. 

Question 8: Page 8 of the RFI, Section 5.2.4, bullet number 1 states “Type and amount of content that can be 

loaded onto each kiosk system”.  Can you please provide any additional details on what the NH 

DOC is seeking?   

Answer 8: This refers to the specs of the kiosk units.  Amount of memory, storage space etc.  Are the 

kiosks able to hold proprietary content only or can they be used for other things?  Can they 

play video as well as applications?  Are they expandable for new features and functionality? 

Etc. 

Question 9: Page 7, Section: 5, Functionality, Sub Section 5.1.1, Inmate access to account balance.  Who does 

the NH DOC currently use for their Offender Management System?   

Answer 9: NHDOC currently uses a system known as CORIS.  The vendor is Abilis New England 

from Portland Maine. 

Question 10: Page 8, Section: 6, Financials, Sub Section 6.4, Cost of Kiosks. 

 If the technology provided by the Vendor is acceptable to the NH DOC, would the NH DOC 

consider that vendor to provide commissary products to the facilities?  

Answer 10: We are considering the “outsourcing” of commissary products and order fulfillment to the 

vendor as a possible option.  There is an optional section of the RFI that addresses this 

topic.  The vendor may suggest incorporating order fulfillment or not in whatever pricing 

models they present. 
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Question 11: Can you tell me whom is the current provider of the Kiosk system is now? 

Answer 11:  Some kiosk services are provided by Keefe currently. 
 
Question 12: Whom is the current email services provider ? 

  

Answer 12: NHDOC currently contracts with Keefe for inmate email as part of the music service, 
however the email service has not been put into production so there is no purchase history 
to provide at this time. 

 

Question 13: Whom is the Inmate Banking service provider? 

 

Answer 13: Inmate account management is provided as part of our Offender Management System.  
That system is called CORIS and is  provided by Abilis New England from Portland 
Maine.  You can contact Pat Dionne from Abilis NE for more details. 

 
Question 14: Are you looking for this project to be a revenue generating funds? Or will the state provide funds 

to acquire the kiosk system? 

 

Answer 14:  The state does not expect to contribute funding to this project.  NH DOC expects this 
project to be at least self-sufficient and may also be revenue generating for the state. 

 
Question 15:  I read that the RFI is to acquire a vendor to help with the Procurement of the future system. Will 

that be released by issuing an RFP or will that be a state contract award?   

 

Answer 15: It is expected that an RFP will follow once information from the RFI is collected. 
 

Question 16: Can you tell me if the state has a current provider for Inmate Commissary services? Is so can you 

tell me who it is? And what the contract terms are?  

 

Answer 16: Commissary services are all currently handled in house. 
 
Question 17: Is it NH DOC’s intent to issue an RFP following the responses to the RFI for Inmate Kiosks 

Systems, or is it the DOC’s intent to award services directly from the responses submitted from 

the RFI for Inmate Kiosks Systems?   

 

Answer 17: NH DOC expects that an RFP will follow with a more detailed scope based on information 
gained from the current RFI. 

 

Question 18: Would the DOC consider separate awards for services listed on page 8, Section C:  “Scope of 

Services, Sub Section 1 Service Functions”?  For example, inmate banking, offender restitution 

payments, and inmate debit cards as one category and Canteen/Commissary, Inmate Music 

Services, Inmate E mail, and Inmate Grievance/ Request Slip as a second category.   

 

Answer 18: The current RFI is being used to gain information about vendor offerings and how they 
may be packaged so that NH DOC may consider one or more RFP’s for services based on 
information gained from the current RFI. 

 

Question 19: Is the current Canteen/Commissary operation operated by the NH DOC?   
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Answer 19: Currently inmate order forms are paper based.  Orders are entered into the department’s 
OMS for inventory and sales tracking.  Orders are then picked and processed by staff and 
inmate workers.   

 

Question 20: Who is the current phone provider?   

 

Answer 20: Our current provider for inmate phones is ICS. 
 

Question 21: Can the NH DOC please provide Canteen/Commissary year-to-date sales for 2013?  

 

Answer 21: Sales from Jan 1, 2013 to Oct 1, 2013 are $1,706,533.53 
 

Question 22: Would proposing vendors have the ability to utilize facility space to perform commissary 

operations?    

 

Answer 22: This is a possibility depending on the overall proposal. 
 

Question 23: Can you please provide a copy of the current commissary pricing? 

 

Answer 23: What is the current commissary spending limit?  Current spending limits vary based on 
housing unit  but the average is $70.00 per week. 

 

Question 24: Section C:  Scope of Services, Sub Section 4, “Current Inmate/Patient/Non Adjudicated Resident 

Population,” lists the facilities and populations to be serviced.  Can the NH DOC please provide 

the number of housing units/pods to gain a better estimate of the pod kiosks that would be 

required?   

 

Answer 24: NHDOC has approximately nineteen “housing units” across three facilities.  However, the 
population of these units vary widely from under 100 to close to 500 inmates. 

 

Question 25: Would NH DOC be responsible for the data and electrical drops required for the kiosks 

requested?   

 

Answer 25: Yes 
 

Question 26: Is the NH Department of Corrections Offender Management system an in-house software 

program, or is the system outsourced?  If the system is outsourced, could NH DOC please provide 

the name of the vendor and contact information?   

 

Question 26: NHDOC has a contract for our OMS with Abilis NE from Portland Maine.  The primary 
point of contact with Abilis is Pat Dionne. 

 
Question 27: What is the average length stay for an inmate at NH DOC?   

 

Answer 27: The average length of stay for all inmates released in the past year was 1.55 years.   
 
Question 28: What is the average number of monthly bookings for NH DOC?   

 

Answer 28: Over the past year the department has averaged 128 monthly admissions to our facilities. 
 

 


